PLYMOUTH BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
September 3, 2024

The Plymouth Board of Zoning Appeals met in regular session in the Council Chambers of the City
Building, 124 North Michigan Street, Plymouth, Indiana, on September 3, 2024, at 7:30 p.m. Board
President Art Jacobs called the meeting to order for Board members Mark Gidley, Brandon Richie,
Paul Wendel, and Alternate Linda Secor. Board member Alan Selge was absent. Alternate Fred
Webster was in attendance but was not needed. Others present were Building Commissioner Dennis
Manuwal, Jr., City Attorney Jeff Houin, and Plan Consultant Ralph Booker. The public was able to
see and hear the meeting through Microsoft Teams.

Board members Richie and Wendel moved and seconded to approve the minutes of August 6, 2024.
The motion carried.

The following legal notice was advertised in the Pilot News on August 22, 2024:

NOTICE OF
PUBLIC HEARING

The Board of Zoning Appeals of
the City of Plymouth, Indiana
will hold a public hearing on
September 3, 2024 at 7:30 p.m.
in the Council Chambers of the
City Building, 124 N. Michigan
St. (Garro St. entrance), Ply-
mouth, Indiana on the following
malters:

BZA 2024-15: lonel and Chris-
tina Turcin, 11626 Lawndale
Avenue, Plymouth, IN 46563:
A Variance of Use to have
chickens on parcel
50-32-03-000-095.000-018, lo-
cated at 11626 Lawndale Ave-
nue, Plymouth, IN 46563,
zoned R-2, Suburban Residen-
tial District.

BZA 2024-16-17: Plumlee
Dentistry, 1400 N. Oak Drive,
Plymouth, IN 46563: A Vari-
ance of Development Stan-
dards to allow an eight (8) foot
front yard setback along Pidco
Drive and to allow an expan-
sion of a legal non-conforming
use of more than 25 %, on par-
col, 50-42-32-301-108.000-019,
located at 1400 N. Oak Drive,
Plymouth, IN 46563, zoned |,
Industrial District.

BZA 2024-18: Cameron and
Brittany Connolly, 10567 Olive
TRL, Plymouth, IN 46563: A
Varnance of Use to raise five (5)
hens for egg production on par-
col 50-32-07-000-148.000-018,
located at 10567 Olive TRL,

_Plymouth, IN_ 46563, zonod.

116
Legals

R-2, Suburban Residential Dis-
trict.

BZA 2024-19: Steven Cralt,
11165 Forest Drive, Plymouth,
IN 46563: A Variance of Use to
have chickens on parcel
50-32-95-000-128.000-018, lo-
cated at 11165 Forest Drive,
Plymouth, IN 46563, zoned
R-2, Suburban Residential Dis-
trict.

Information on these mallers
may be obtained al the olffice of
the Clerk-Treasurer, 124 N.
Michigan St., Plymouth, IN, and
telephone #574-936-2124.
Written objections to the pro-
posal filed at the Clerk-Treasur-
er's office will be considered
and oral comments will be
heard. The hearing may be
continued from time to time as
may be found necessary.

It you are disabled and need
special accommodations,
please call the ADA Coordina-
tor at 574-936-2948,

Kyle Williams, Recording Sec-
retary, Board of Zoning Ap-

peals, August 22, 2024
August 22, 2024 PN359167 hspaxlp

BZA 2024-11: Cashen Creek, LLC, 14755 3B RD, Plymouth, IN 46563: A Variance of
Development Standards to have a variance from the surfacing requirements of Article 6, Section
180, D. Parking Development Standards, 4. Surfacing Requirement, which requires a parking lot
be paved with concrete or asphalt within one (1) year and leave the existing parking lot to be
gravel, on parcel 50-32-93-304-446.000-019, located at 627 S. Michigan Street, Plymouth, IN
46563, zoned R-3, Traditional Residential District. (Tabled)

Plan Consultant Booker reviewed the findings of fact and the request from the applicant. He read
the applicant’s letter aloud (see attached letter below).



PLYMOUTH BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
September 3, 2024

Cashen Crock Florist
627 S Michigon Street
Plymouth, IN 46563

574-936-3165

City of Plymouth
Board of Zoning Appeals

Plymouth, IN 46563

July 12,2024

RE: Request for Variance of Use tor Plymouth Zoning Ordinance Article 6-180-D-4
To Whom It May Concern:

I am seeking a varionce tor the ordinance pertaining to our parking lot, locataed at 627 S Michigan
Stieet, Plymouth, IN . Wa nre asking to be able to keep the gravel which we have in place currently.

The quotes we have received for the project, based on the requirements of the ordinance, are cost
prohibitive and is more funds than | have available. Because the paiking lot size is smallit does not
affect the city or neighborhood it it remains gravel. linstalled the parking lot as o convenience and
safety to our customers to allevinte the dangers of on street parking on South Michigan Street, |
hava already improved many things at this proporty and am asking the city to grant this variance as
by not doing so will be detrimental to my business.

Best Regords,

Pt 7. [{m/_,__

Beth M Cashen
Owner
VR Grass =
e S, N |
s , C/C\fﬁqen
< - —— 50 e B Q Craek
B S | Florist
! L Relingy Spares © (\,U;\Q;\,\
E " N o R 4
- l ; - l () e Eadn
Q‘\L RN G e e o W SREES I
R |
\‘\ok)sc { \d E
s b !
BT [— I
S | !
! i ! {
o t ) !
mmnonze] | - oo
i \'_ SR T e e Lo Cooew
% ! T = = = % ///
1 K \ i\
| Grwve i 1\_// Grass
. I - ! g = —
(:300? \\b(\(
P = e T - - - - =
&) \ /
~ Ym0 —— - ————————
) 7 23—
Mié\m‘e)‘v\ L 18 »



PLYMOUTH BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
September 3, 2024

— WHITE VYNL DECORATIV
V| FENCE! PROPERTY

)

& OFF STREET ]
PARKING LOT x%830
~2,615 sq ft

(9032 2 Rlouatlll\ N
) : . |\

~ CASHEN CREEK
" FLORISTS

_,x TBM: CORNER OF
i+ X SIGN BASE
ELEV: 100

Jacobs asked for confirmation that she came there a year ago to ask for a variance to put the parking
lot in.

Beth Cashen (14755 3B RD., Plymouth, IN 46563)

Cashen replied that she did not come in because it was already in process before they bought the
property and they said she could put it in, so it was renewed.

Jacobs asked if she knew that it had to be paved within a year.

Cashen replied that she thought it was longer than a year. She stated she wanted them to realize that
the reason it was there was to help with the safety of the community. She stated they have a lot of
widows coming in and fall out in the street and they are aware that getting them off the street was
very important. She stated now with the greenhouses in disrepair, that they are trying to get those
up and running because they are the only actual nursery in this town and had been in that location
for years. She stated the funds are going to try to keep that here in the city so that was what they
are trying to do.

Jacobs explained that his daughter was in a handicap wheelchair so he was aware of a lot about the
handicap rules and that parking lot does not meet the ADA requirements as it had to be firm, stable,
and slip resistant. He stated that was one of the things that concerned him.

Cashen replied they are in the process of getting that finished up so it was safer. She stated she also
had a handicap granddaughter so she understood.



PLYMOUTH BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
September 3, 2024

Gidley stated in the corner where there was a handicap spot designated, if she planned on paving
that or to firm it up. He asked what her plan was there.

Cashen replied that there was a little trouble with the one step and when she got the property, there
was no handicap at all and they are trying to get it put in.

Wendel asked if the business was for sale or the house. Cashen disagreed. Wendel stated he had
heard that a couple times.

Cashen replied that everyone knows your business when they don’t know your business.

Gidley asked if she was trying to reestablish the greenhouses. Cashen agreed. Gidley asked if she
grew flowers outside her current residence.

Cashen replied that they had for about eight years.
Gidley asked if she planned on moving any of that into the greenhouses.

Cashen replied they had plants in the greenhouses now but not in a big productive type of way. She
stated it was mostly a spring/nursery type.

Gidley asked if the concrete apron up to the sidewalk from the street already there when she bought
it. Cashen disagreed. Gidley asked for clarification that she put the concrete apron in.

Cashen replied in agreement and stated that it was a part of the previous owner’s plans.
Gidley asked if it was the Felke’s plans.

Cashen disagreed and explained that it was Bob Casey who had done all that work. She stated there
were two different owners between her and the Felke family.

Wendel asked in regard to ADA if she planned to put a concrete pad down. He stated he dealt with
wheelchairs as well in his line of work and they are not allowed to move through gravel or grass
very safely. He eluded to what Jacobs mentioned in that it had to be a firm area that either powered
or non-powered wheelchairs can slide into. Cashen agreed.

Secor asked if there was an issue with snow removal in the winter with the gravel.

Cashen replied that she just hired a person.

Board members Gidley and Wendel moved and seconded to open the public hearing. The motion
carried.

Wendel added that they did have one person who showed up and spoke in favor of this request last
meeting.



PLYMOUTH BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
September 3, 2024

Susan Daugherty (1214 Lake Ave., Plymouth, IN 46563)

Daugherty stated she worked for Cashen and that she wished to speak on their commitment to put
the business back to where it once was in terms of the greenhouses and what it can bring to their
community. She stated they had plans, materials are bought, and with the economy things have
taken a lot more funds than often available when they receive quotes back. She stated the other item
was with the parking size being small that it was difficult to get quotes back from reputable
companies that do blacktops. She stated she does feel for the historic neighborhood that blacktop
would be very unappealing to say the least in such a small area. She stated from experience in her
job, she worked at a big box retailer in town, and have been in charge of the lawn and garden areas.
She explained that by having their product out on a blacktop that it would be detrimental and labor
cost intensive because of the heat reflection compared to the gravel beside the greenhouse there.
She stated the Cashen’s had put a lot of money, time, and effort into the property. She stated the
property had changed hands a number of times but they had retained it and they had been a really
wonderful family to work for. She stated she was appreciative of her job and wished that they would
move forward with this variance so they can move forward with the plans that she had and that they
can provide options to the community that she hopes and dreams to do.

Board members Wendel and Gidley moved and seconded to close the public hearing. The motion
carried.

Secor asked if an extension of time would help.

Cashen replied she would like to have the variance so she can work at her own pace. She stated she
would like to pave the parking lot eventually, but it was not feasible at that time, and she did not
know how long that would take. She stated no matter how many times she wants to complete
something in a certain amount of time that she realizes she was not as young as she used to be.

Jacobs stated the one thing he would say about the parking lot was that it should be 4-6 inches thick,
and it must be compacted, solid, and with no slipping.

Gidley believed the ADA location should be brought into compliance with ADA rules if they were
to grant an extension. He asked Manuwal if he could work with her to help bring the location into
compliance.

Board members Wendel and Gidley moved and seconded to give a one-year extension for the
applicant to address the ADA concerns of the parking lot. The motion passed by roll call vote.

Yes: Gidley, Richie, Secor, and Wendel
No: Jacobs
Absent: Selge

BZA 2024-15: Tonel and Christina Turcin, 11626 Lawndale Avenue, Plymouth, IN 46563: A
Variance of Use to have chickens on parcel 50-32-03-000-095.000-018, located at 11626
Lawndale Avenue, Plymouth, IN 46563, zoned R-2, Suburban Residential District.



PLYMOUTH BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
September 3, 2024

Plan Consultant Booker reviewed the findings of fact and the request from the applicant. He read
the applicant’s letter aloud (see attached letter below).

s, l»('\\("( o( \ l'\’\(’i'\,'{"

Heflo Viymooth , 3N 3, Crisline
old Yo Tluvarn,ave o happy \\\(‘\'\ l.fw 'M(\>\/(’<~l
Zweve (vorn (Missoul VoWe ave enjoume e
) netanbors.
weathey ond all oof {Yiend iy e o
© & e . <L OO ‘“)L‘ (‘b\\('\\( i
Loy \f(’()\)\(‘(j\‘ W\ ‘() \\ ( l l
A otas 1S boe o thers
and ke (oop with pon . s o oo ;
e ’ " oy o 4 the
“)0\/\/\,) She oves « OO e (\“\)“]\‘\'\o\ RAN
e vene and soon, conechmiy €457
NCYENS o ' \
“he Cl.‘()\’(_c.\\("'cl) 145 acng N0y m N
( \. NS Neyvyy O QLW
Ihe clnorens, ot o GIve thew ) 1 b ol e
O ynogphee « e Lae Qe O COf }\(‘\ e .
ey ance of e Meaueen /l{vd/- /(wl 005
c ) 1 0, o (L\'\( a . 5
Plen oy of 1owsy pars gowty 24 U Loehes on Wi
)¢ (\\\r(\‘ \’l(,\\\‘Q' (N \0\ (& \‘ \Y()()() AN\ \\'—’ ;/.‘\,\‘ (OO,
(\k"&fr\(-r"\xs\ Ahat Welp covex sthe ¢ mer
(&) C /

,U“\ 4o ‘\\d(}
'\>.‘\v'('\ &

3 p ¥ N \‘N\(’C\
wle. \\\\»\&\’\ \he o /(«_w{\ o ’“\ (‘\)( on Yhe.
Cever bed Aheafon usl ©RUN
K covered  Hhe chtepen =

(O, We
\enmo “‘"Yf\ '\(\,, P on
ot Greet AR Leone, -

s loy banee o O ¢
Q at> (vom n&"\(j\\\”

. Al ey e
ave l\\(l\(,\ ,uk,\\, \'Y{\n e (e e U.("SIIH\(} l(w‘ )

e Nno L - dhe well bewg ot oof
((\\‘\\(\'f\’(\() (nn"l)/duh\'\ (ﬂ( the  wel | @ \ o ot
ek o T Qg O3 A his opperiviny

) ) \ A\, ) /(“

'\O '()L.k).'\{‘)\\,) )\’.(-()""y 0o C,,\’\((l\\ NS |

" (‘\l({(‘()h(‘ {bnee S0 ‘“\t\) ovve O0°
“re  CONC¥en ((’“J)./(‘“”‘ ;
Tthey ave <yuw+ (¢
. o’ ] -2
ek \)‘( \l
((U’Hlll].
(



PLYMOUTH BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
September 3, 2024

2 S tlan

Y 14(50\\ desoriphon 11620 Lowadale aue. Pluestn, 3N 16563

b o
\b)
Nop

-E\u V‘fJ‘&It\I&O.H
W Sheeds.
WW) ]Lw\cJ

? +&un
1%3 !Cuf\d

Chicken coo
Cuway Fro

o
EagleViewjTechnology Corporation

LOvy( o

Jacobs prefaced that this was by no means critism as he was wondering on how they can educate
the public better. He asked if she was unaware that they needed to get a variance beforehand to
have chickens.

Christina Turcin (11626 Lawndale Ave., Plymouth, IN 46563)

Mrs. Turcin replied they were unaware as they came from Missouri and she specifically told her
agent that they wanted a property where they could have chickens and they showed her so many
properties. She stated they decided on this property and she knew they wanted chickens. She
explained it was told to her that there was no HOA and no restrictions.

Gidley stated that she misinformed her.

Jacobs stated the reason he asked was because he wished to better educate the realtors as they get a
lot of cases where the realtor misinforms the buyer. He stated it puts them in a bad spot.

Mrs. Turcin stated that was why they started with chickens as they brought some over from
Missouri. She explained that they are actually very quiet.

Jacobs asked if there were any roosters.
Mors. Turcin replied they had them as chicks and was unaware what ones would become roosters.

She stated that recently some were crowing in the morning so they found out which ones were
roosters and those are not with us anymore. She stated they are still growing and if they were to



PLYMOUTH BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
September 3, 2024

find any more then they would not keep them as she understands that the neighbors would not like
those. She stated they are very flexible and understanding so they would be willing to reduce the
number of chickens, move the coop, etc. She commented that it would be very hard to move the
coop.

Jacobs asked how many chickens they had.
Ionel Turcin (11626 Lawndale Ave., Plymouth, IN 46563)
Mr. Turcin replied they had 25 chickens currently.

Jacobs asked about the maximum number of chickens they would have at a given time. He asked if
25 would be the maximum number.

Mr. Turcin replied they originally had 28 chickens.

Mors. Turcin stated their coop was a shed so it would be more weatherproof compared to the normal
chicken coop you can see through. She restated the coop would be hard to move if they had to move
it.

Jacobs asked who their realtor was.

Mrs. Turcin replied their realtor was Kasey James. She stated she was very sweet.
Jacobs agreed as he knew her.

Wendel asked Booker if there was a limit on the number of chickens you could have.

Booker replied that they were only approved for R-1 and he did not believe they did a limit on the
number.

Board members Richie and Wendel moved and seconded to open the public hearing. The motion
carried.

Gary Neidig (9663 Meadow Ln., Plymouth, IN 46563)

Neidig shared that he was the neighbor to the north and that he had absolutely no issues with their
chickens at this point. He stated he wanted to see if there would be any parameters that would go
around it such as quantity. He believed there was an amendment made to the R-1 that limited the
amount of space and was unsure if any of those amendments could be applied here as they do not
want to have it open ended. He stated he was going to be a little more terse on the roosters but they
got rid of them. He commented that he appreciated the fact that they were unsure what ones were
roosters until they grew up. He stated that would be one item that he would like as a parameter that
roosters would not be allowed in the variance. He stated for the chickens themselves that there was
probably some reasonable quantity in the space or else you are creating a small farm.



PLYMOUTH BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
September 3, 2024

Jacobs asked what his thoughts were as a neighbor. He stated they had 28 now, so what were his
thoughts with 28 chickens.

Richie commented that they had 25 chickens.

Neidig replied that he never would have known how many they had as they had got them contained
enough.

Wendel asked if he had seen them or smelt them.

Neidig replied that he had not noticed any smells. He stated he believed there should be a parameter
either to the size or quantity and no roosters. He stated he was fine with these chickens and he was
the closest neighbor so he would be there to support them.

Jacobs asked for clarification if they had 28 chickens or 25.

Mr. Turcin replied that they had 25 chickens as it was 28 chickens but they had to remove the three
roosters.

Jacobs apologized as he thought had heard 28 chickens.

Neidig recognized this was a trend with people wanting to have poultry so he believed it should be
addressed in the zoning on how it would be replicated.

Tyler Puckett (9728 Meadow Ln., Plymouth, IN 46563)

Puckett shared he was the neighbor on the east side of them and that he had no problems with this
request as he loved chickens. He stated he wished he could see them.

Jacobs asked if any of these neighbors were paid off with eggs.

Puckett replied that he was not but he wished he was. He stated he loved chickens and that was one
thing he missed about living out in the country. He stated this request does not bother him one bit.

Booker read aloud a letter opposed to the request that was received that afternoon.

4, J
JW% 49” by
KLINEDINST NENNETH M & KELLI JO KLINEDINST MITCHELL

JT RS

11599 Lawndale Ave \Q am

Plymouth, IN 46563-7602,




PLYMOUTH BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
September 3, 2024

Tammy Hall (11115 Timber Ln., Plymouth, IN 46563)

Mrs. Hall stated she understood back in August when they started talking about 4-H, chickens, etc.
that it was to remain in an R-1 zoning, and she was now noticing it branching out to the R-2. She
asked at what point in time that it had changed.

Gidley replied that it had not changed and that this was a variance request. He stated the rule still
stands but this applicant was asking for a variance from the rules.

Mrs. Hall asked for clarification that you can still ask for a variance in an R-2, regardless of the rule
for it to be in an R-1.

Jacobs replied that they can ask for anything and if the board feels that it does not affect the public
in any adverse manner that it can be granted. He explained that it was case by case as well so they
can grant one and not another, depending on the scenario. He provided the instance if someone had
two feet between their houses and the neighbor wanted to put one that they may not allow that, but
it all depends. He explained that was why there was the Board of Zoning Appeals.

Mrs. Hall believed that a lot of people read the notice in the paper that were in the R-2 zoning and
a lot of people in subdivisions decided that it did not concern them, so that was why she was looking
for a clarification.

Wendel replied that they had a clarification on subdivisions.

Booker agreed that the rule for R-1 made it so that it was not allowed in subdivisions, however,
what Jacobs said was right. He explained that you can ask for anything on your property. He stated
this board was a quasi-judicial board that judges whether that was acceptable in that area or not
acceptable in that area. He stated that someone could ask for chickens in the industrial district or
downtown Plymouth if they would like to.

Wendel commented that he was thankful nobody was asking for pigs.

Mrs. Hall stated that could be their next thing with their subdivisions. She asked if they would be
back and forth with one day being chickens and the next pigs.

Jacobs stated they have already granted chickens in R-2 in other subdivisions, so this was not the
first.

Gidley stated that was also granted before the R-1 ruling. He stated there was a woman out on King
Road who was told by a realtor that she was not under the jurisdiction of this body. He stated that
was what brought that discussion up a year ago as she was misinformed that her property was within
the two-mile jurisdiction. He stated there was restrictions put on her as well, but she had acreage.
He stated it was not an apples-to-apples comparison between that one and this one. He stated there
was also one in a subdivision out on Nutmeg Road.

Jacobs clarified it was Nutmeg Meadows.



PLYMOUTH BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
September 3, 2024

Gidley stated there was restrictions placed on that one as well. He stated their coop was small and
there was only five chickens with no roosters. He stated they have no rules for variances and that
was his problem with approving any of these that night as they have no standards set for chickens.
He stated he did homework before these cases, and he checked other communities. He stated they
can have chickens in South Bend, but they can only have six, their coop must be a certain size, they
must apply for a permit every year and submit pictures of the coop when you submit the application.
He stated in Mishawaka they can’t have chickens at all unless they have five acres. He stated in
some communities they mandate a test on raising chickens. He listed there was a difference between
meat chickens and laying hens. He stated there are rules on butchering on their property. He asked
if someone in a subdivision would want their neighbor chopping the heads off chickens in their
back yard. He stated there was also the question on what they do with the entrails and feathers and
how they dispose of the droppings of chickens. He asked how sanitation was considered in a
subdivision. '

Mrs. Hall stated those were some of her concerns and at first when she saw the R-1 and now it was
going into an R-2. She stated she wanted to be sure they are trying to figure it out and set rules, but

she does not want to come back here next year because somebody wanted something new.

Gidley stated it was always a possibility as Jacobs mentioned that everyone was entitled to the
opportunity to apply for anything, but this board must make a judgement and each case stands alone.

Kenneth Hall (11115 Timber Ln., Plymouth, IN 46563)

Mr. Hall stated he lives in a different subdivision, but they are getting to that case. He explained
they said a few things that bothered him. He stated it was said that there was no rules. He asked
what they do not have rules.

Booker replied that they must go by the five standards addressed at the start of the case.

Mr. Hall stated there are no standards so if he wanted to have a call girl escort in his neighborhood,
he asked who he had to go to get that.

Gidley began to reply to his question but was interrupted.

Mr. Hall stated to not shake their head at that question. He asked who he would have to go to get a
variance for regarding that. He asked who voted on that.

Jacobs stated that variances are voted on by the Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA).
Mr. Hall asked how many people that was.

Jacobs replied with five people.

Mr. Hall asked who voted them in.

Jacobs began to reply to his question but was interrupted.



PLYMOUTH BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
September 3, 2024

Mr. Hall stated he comes from the county so he cannot vote for them. He stated they are making
rules for him in the county. The board once again tried to respond to his questions but were
interrupted. Mr. Hall stated there was not yes or no but what really bothered him was that people
were concerned about their rights. He stated what people need to start getting concerned about was
about what was right.

Gidley stated he had served on this board for 16 years.
Hall stated he did not care if he had served for 20 years.

Gidley stated he should start caring about something. It became inaudible with people interjecting.
Gidley stated he represented the two-mile zone where Mr. Hall happened to live. He stated he was
an appointee by the Marshall County Commissioners that he voted for.

Mr. Hall stated Gidley was not an appointee by him because he cannot vote for him.

Booker explained to Mr. Hall that his argument in this was with the State Legislature as they create
the legislation. Mr. Hall stated he didn’t want to hear it. Booker stated they enable the legislation
that allows for zoning in the extra-territorial jurisdiction and the Marshall County Commissioners
pick two people to represent the extra-territorial jurisdiction. He stated if he wanted to change that
that he could not change that here but rather with the State Legislature.

Mr. Hall stated he understood that there was a procedure to do that but all he was trying to say was
that people who are making decisions for him in the county are people in the city that he cannot
vote for.

Jacobs explained that Gidley and him both live in the county. He asked why he came up here and
started to take attitude with them because he did. He stated they had not done anything wrong and
had tried to listen. Mr. Hall attempted to interject. Jacobs stated he did as he came up here
confrontational, so he was going to return that. He stated if he would like to try being nice and talk
then he would talk to him but do not give him attitude because that would shut him down quick. He
stated he was very open to what was being asked because he had thirty acres in the city limits, and
he had to follow the same rules. He stated he could not even get a chicken without asking for this
permission. He stated he had to get a variance to get a pole barn on his land before he built his
house. He stated he had to follow the same procedures, and they follow what the state tells them.
He thanked him for his concerns and thoughts, but to not give him attitude when it was not
warranted.

Mr. Hall stated when he spoke, he did not interrupt them.
Jacobs stated he came up to the podium with attitude.

Mr. Hall stated the attitude came because he was interrupted. He stated they would move on from
that.

Jacobs thanked him and told him his five minutes were up.



PLYMOUTH BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
September 3, 2024

Mr. Hall stated he would be back for the next public hearing.
Jacobs replied that would be perfect.

Board members Wendel and Secor moved and seconded to close the public hearing. The motion
carried.

Houin wished to clarify what the zoning ordinance stated which was the Agriculture Limited, which
was allowed in the R-1 zoning district. He explained the definition as follows:

Agricuiture Limited

The use of land for animal production is limited to 4-H projects and home
consumption with sales limited to the sale of agricultural commodities grown on the
same ranch or farm that provides such sale. Livestock shall be limited to one (1) horse,
donkey, mule, cow, dairy stock, goat, hog. sheep, or other similar animal per five (5)
acres of lot area. No large livestock or poultry are allowed in @ major platted subdivision.
Poultry must be keptin a fully enclosed secure pen of more than one hundred twenty-
eight (128) square feet that includes an enclosed coop providing @ minimum of tvo (2}
sguare feet and an open run area providing @ minimum of eight (8) square feet per bird.

Houin explained it was not a limitation on the number of birds, but it was a space requirement for
each bird.

Wendel asked for clarification that there was nothing in R-2.

Houin replied in agreement as R-2 does not allow it outright. He explained that was why they were
requesting a variance and because it was in a platted subdivision. He stated it would not be allowed
in an R-2, unless it was granted by a variance.

Richie stated he grew up in Starke County where slaughtering chickens in your front yard was any
Tuesday night. He stated the concern of where it stops was valid because that was important to look
at. He stated in saying there are no rules or set standards for variances, that they need to be very
specific in setting some standards, whenever or where they grant these and take into consideration
the people who must live around them. He explained that himself personally, he would not care if
his neighbor were to have 80 chickens, but he grew up where it was different. He stated they need
to be very specific on what those standards are when they grant this for R-2 as up to this point, they
have not been allowed at all. He stated they could stick by that ruling or get strict, so it does not get
out of hand.

Jacobs stated it was tough to put rules on everything as each case was different, hence why this
board was in place. He stated there was no ruling here so what they are looking at was if they would

allow anything for the R-2.

Houin stated if they were to allow it, they could make it as to where they would follow the same
standards as Agriculture Limited in R-1.

Jacobs asked for clarification that there was no limit on the number.



PLYMOUTH BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
September 3, 2024

Houin replied there was no limit on the number, but there was a limit on the minimum space
requirement.

Booker stated they could eliminate the roosters as well.
Secor asked if there were any rules for 4-H.
Jacobs replied not in that area.

Richie asked if there was ever an instance where someone came from R-2 and asked for this or
were they turned down.

Jacobs replied that it was out on Nutmeg Meadows, and it was approved.

Richie asked what restrictions were put on them.

Jacobs replied no roosters, and he believed the number of chickens was five.

Manuwal commented there was also a row of arborvitae that blocked the view from the road.
Board member Gidley moved to deny the request as presented. The motion died with lack of second.
Gidley stated there was a lot of research that needs to be done before they allow this. He stated it
was unfortunate if they were to deny this that they would not be able to come and ask for another
variance for a year. He stated that would give them time to come up with some rules that they do
not have now if they wish to even pursue making rules if they allow chickens in subdivisions.

Secor asked if they would have time to do something about the chickens.

Houin replied if they were to deny the request then the applicant would be required to remove the
chickens.

Secor asked for a timeframe.
Houin replied only if it was put into motion.
Wendel asked if six months would be enough time to sit down and investigate parameters.

Houin replied that the previous amendment that allowed for the agriculture limited took Booker
quite a while.

Booker believed that each was on a case-by-case basis. He stated they have based livestock
operations before and put parameters around those. He stated they put parameters with input from
the neighbors to protect the neighbors on the cases that were approved. He stated there are some
locations where it should not be chickens and there are some places that should not have chickens
and there are some with neighbors not close so there was not much contesting. He stated they could



PLYMOUTH BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
September 3, 2024

do what Gidley had done and look at other nearby options. He stated they do have “agriculture
limited” as a rule.

Jacobs stated even with these rules, someone could still come in and ask for 10 chickens. He stated
they would still have the ability to ask for anything that was different but, in this case, it would at
least give them grounds. He stated his thought was they have this operation and are maintaining it
well, with the neighbors voicing that, if there was anything they could do versus just eliminating
them that the board could live with. He asked if they could have a motion that would allow them to
have the chickens for a year, so they would have time to figure out what was necessary.

Booker stated it sounds feasible, but they would have to remember to check up on them.

Jacobs stated his thoughts were to do what Gidley was suggesting, as that would give them the
opportunity to grant some wishes now, versus having them remove all of them as the neighbors
look on this favorably.

Gidley asked what number he was proposing.
Jacobs replied he had no idea what their size was and had no idea how that math worked out.

Houin replied to the way he interpreted that definition was basically that they are supposed to have
10 square feet per chicken with two square feet of that having to be an enclosed coop.

Jacobs asked how large the shed was.
Mr. Turcin replied that the shed was 10 x 12.

Jacobs stated part of his thoughts are they have 25 chickens without issues, if they could grant them
that for some period. He stated if the timeframe he proposed passes with no issues, then they can
retain the chickens. He stated if they had to do something different, then they would give them time
to correct it. He stated if they can meet the sizes of the “agriculture limited,” they would allow the
stipulation of size.

Deputy Clerk-Treasurer Kyle Williams asked if the applicant would need to come back in one year
or if it would be up to the BZA to reach out to the applicant.

Jacobs replied that the BZA would have to reach out to the applicant. He stated his thoughts are if
they make it to where they can have more, he would want to let them know that, and if for some
reason, it was limited, he would like to talk to them about the limitation.

Richie asked if they could theoretically go to them before the one year and tell them no chickens at
all. Jacobs agreed as they could also do that tonight. He stated he would like to give them one year
while they work it out. He stated he did not see them going to none. He commented on the other
hand, they could broaden it if they consider having more.

Richie asked if someone lived in a subdivision and had a smaller piece of property, and they wanted
to have chickens.



PLYMOUTH BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
September 3, 2024

Jacobs replied that it would still need to come before the board as every case was on their own
standards and merit.

Gidley believed Richie had a legitimate point that their lot was large so 12 chickens could fit there
but for some of the smaller lots in that subdivision, if the coop was not properly placed, it would
negatively affect their neighbors.

Jacobs stated that was no different from now in the R-1 if someone were to put chickens near their
neighbor. He stated that was why every case stands separately. He stated they have many cases like
that and provided examples of signs. He stated signs are worse than chickens and they have had to
say yes or no to some signs, but every case stands on their own.

Richie stated he was not saying no chickens, but rather if there should be something in the motion
about the size of the lot at all.

Jacobs replied that he did not believe so as each case stood alone.
Gidley agreed that little lots would be an issue.

Houin asked for clarification if this passes and they were allowed to have those chickens and if this
board were to take no action to limit that variance, within the next year, that it would automatically
become a permanent variance for them.

Jacobs replied in agreement and stated they could come before them and ask for more.

Houin stated he wished to clarify that because he did not want some amendment to be made to the
zoning ordinance and then two years from now someone would come back to try to limit them. He
stated if this board were to take no further action, within the next year, that it would become
permanent.

Jacobs stated if they do nothing with chickens and continue as they had, then they can have twelve.
He commented they could also come back a year from now and ask for more as well.

Board members Jacobs and Wendel moved and seconded to approve BZA 2024-15 with the
stipulation of no roosters, a year timeframe for review, and allowance of 12 chickens as presented.
The motion passed by roll call vote.

Yes: Secor, Wendel, and Jacobs
No: Gidley and Richie
Absent: Selge

Jacobs asked Manuwal if a week would be enough time to remove the other chickens.

Manuwal replied that whatever parameter they set, he would enforce it.



PLYMOUTH BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
September 3, 2024

Board members Jacobs and Richie moved and seconded to give the applicant one week to remove
the extra chickens. The motion passed by roll call vote.

Yes: Richie, Secor, Wendel, and Jacobs
No: Gidley
Absent: Selge

BZA 2024-16-17: Plumlee Dentistry, 1400 N. Oak Drive, Plymouth, IN 46563: A Variance of
Development Standards to allow an eight (8) foot front yard setback along Pidco Drive and to
allow an expansion of a legal non-conforming use of more than 25 %, on parcel, 50-42-32-301-
108.000-019, located at 1400 N. Oak Drive, Plymouth, IN 46563, zoned I, Industrial District.

Plan Consultant Booker reviewed the findings of fact and the request from the applicant. He read
the applicant’s letter aloud (see attached letter below).

mm Danch, Harner & Associates, Inc.

Mictiset J, Dancdy, LA, Lund Swveyors « Proflessivial Engineas
Ron Harner, P.S. Landscape Architects » Land Plannors
Plymonth Board of Zoning Appeals July 12, 2024

111 N. Center Street
Plymouth, IN 46563

Dear Board of Zoning Appeals Members:

Please accept this application for approval of an expansion of Plumlee Dentistry at 1400
N. Oak Drive, Doctor Plumlee is excited to be expanding his scrvice to ofter an additional dental
provider and expand service to the community. In order to move forward with the building
additional, we respectfully request consideration for a reduction in our front setback on Pidco, as
well as permission to expand a legal non-conforming use beyond the 25% anticipated in the
Zoning Ordinance.

This building expansion is designed with the intent of maintaining as much natural light
into the building as possible, while eflfectively using the existing hallways and traffic flow of the
building. The expansion would also allow for much needed on-site amenities for the office,
including laundry facilities, additional office space, and a conference room. This use is unique in
that it is located in the I Industrial District, which is consistent with the intent of the district, but
not actually allowed by the Ordinance. Allowing for this expansion will ensure this valuable
business remains in the community at a location convenient to the major employment hub of the
City. Doctor Plumlee is committed to improving the appearance of the site, including a mutli-use
path along Oak, consistent with the preliminary planning efforts being conducted by the City,
additional landscaping, and improved on-site drainage to mitigate any impact on surrounding
praperties.

Attached please find the appropriate application, site plan, and support documents for our
application. Our full justification and explanation of the request can be found in the attached
documentation, We look forward to the opportunity to present to the Board at your next available
public hearing and respectfully request your support for this expansion of a local business.

Sincerely,

i/'lu,/(. 7/{ gw)%(.

Angela M. Smith
Senior Planner



PLYMOUTH BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
September 3, 2024

\U | I . ——
- PIDCO DRIVE (70.0° R/W) i T
- ‘ T T Wawesny ) = : l . ‘
y e =\ I ¥ = !
( " \ " | e - | l
i o 4, n 0
" R \ o) W o
s Sk Nln o war
| E—— Mgl L -ergemny
— — [ f il J l ‘\
o i .u i 4\ -
P : W
I i ==y ,"‘ i
| ¥ S ;
| WS TR 67 — — = !
por | [— T | |
| l— PROPOSED 10 ¥ | |
/ tMULTI-USE PATH |
s ! . : |
el ¢ | \
i i o =
sl o ! 1
2 —_—
S L | ; [oem |
al ! s
g | —— lnlI» — N B i
we 3| 1° ~ v A | N
v o | r Pos .J ?1 (X
| 7 7 i 3
g | I 4
z| | . IN% ; I—;
| I PROPOSED ASPHALT . | G T T T
! § EOGE OF PAVEMENT PAVEMENY =
g
| [ Lo uy) N | ”“I’ 1040 - gt
| o = &
| u"{a { L J ﬁ
| \,W «-'I | L AR boonl | |
1 I TeM. | ; = ——————
G e
—%sm'— $ Bl &
’ proErnon
I ‘.1'.":"'-'"“': " ,H‘

Angela Smith (1643 Commerce Dr., South Bend, IN 46617)

Smith stated while she had been through the chicken ordinance in South Bend and St. Joseph
County that she was happy that she was here not discussing chickens. She stated that Plumlee
Dentistry was looking to expand and the stakes that were shown in Booker’s report were the
property line so it would be 8 foot from the property line. She stated the property line was a
significant distance off of Pidco Drive. She stated when Plumlee was designing the building, they
wanted to keep the windows and light there so builing in another direction would essentially make
all their additions dark, which isn’t where you want to be when you have someone working in your
mouth on your teeth. She stated in the Industrial District, it talks about in some cases small scale
commercial uses, such as dry cleaners, delis, and coffee shops included to serve the employees of
the industrial development. She explained she would make the same point for a dentist. She stated
if she was taking her lunch break to go get her teeth cleaned, that it would be nice to be close to
their place of employment. She stated while a dentist office was not allowed in an industrial district,
in this particular case, it was well within the bounds. She explained the rules regarding the
expansion of a legal non-conforming use are typically seen when you have a case that was more
intense in a less intense district, so if this was an industrial use in a commercial district, then you
would not want it to expand as much. She stated in this case with it being a commercial use in a
industrial district, it was a less intense use of the area, so the expansion has no real impact on the
surrounding district or community. She stated since it was based upon the entire square footage, the
increase was around 73% but the footprint was not as large. She stated the area was a rather modest
footprint to start. She stated as part of this, they would be expanding the parking to meet the parking



PLYMOUTH BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
September 3, 2024

requirements and addressing all the drainage for the parking area, so not just what they are adding
but the parking lot. She believed there was some of the parking area that was not being accomodated
at that time. She stated in relation to the sidewalk and their earlier discussions with the city that the
multi-use path was mentioned. She stated Plumlee was committed to help with that but it may not
be immediately and part of the reason for that as Engineers when reviewing that, they could not
figure out how to safely get it to the corner, as there was a substantial amount of infrastructure at
the corner. She listed poles, utility box, etc. so it would be detrimental to put it in at this point when
the city already had a plan to put that through.

James Easterday (119 W. Garro Street, Plymouth, IN 46563)

Easterday stated in discussions with the city, it looks as though they have a long-term plan they are
working towards in trying to figure out how that fits in. He stated was the attorney for Dr. Plumlee.

Gidley asked if they knew what utilities were in the ground there.

Smith replied everything so water and sewer would have to be accomodated through the basement
structures. She stated this would have a basement with laundry downstairs, with nothing else other
than storage. She stated they could accommodate it through the planned basement. She stated there
was electric, water, and gas that comes to this facility.

Easterday commented that it was private and to this facility so it was not public utility.
Gidley stated his concern was the right-of-way (ROW) and what was in the ROW.
Smith replied that all utilities are in the ROW.

Gidley asked for clarification that the building would be eight feet back from the property line.
Smith agreed. Gidley asked if they knew how far the utilities were from the property line. He stated
he was concerned about future excavation along Pidco Drive.

Smith replied on the site plan, they can see the underground utility lines marked right along the
pavement edge, so if they were to ever to expand Pidco Drive that they would have to relocate those
utilities. She stated the water comes in a straight laterial and that was far into the ROW. She stated
the sewer comes in from another property.

Gidley stated there were no elevations provided and asked if the elevations and the 8 feet back from
the property line also include the roof overhang. He stated that the roofline would have to be
included in the setback.

John Spalding (106 Lincolnway E., Mishawaka, IN 46544)

Spalding replied that it was too the building footprint and not the drip line so the overhang would
be 12 inches beyond that.

Gidley asked for confirmation that they are 7 feet back from the property line. Spaling agreed.
Gidley stated they do count that.



PLYMOUTH BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
September 3, 2024

Spalding replied in agreement and stated it was a two-story structure so that was sitting roughly 18
feet above the property.

Gidley asked for confirmation that it was a one-story building now but this would be a two story
addition. Spalding agreed. Gidley asked if the pine tree was theirs and if it would be staying.
Spalding agreed.

Easterday stated he measured the addition to the pavement and it was about 31 feet. He stated it
was obviously not the ROW line, because there was a 7 foot ROW there.

Gidley asked for confirmation that the new parking spaces would be 10 x 20. Smith agreed.

Board members Gidley and Richie moved and seconded to open the public hearing. The motion
carried.

Jeff Houin (124 N. Michigan St., Plymouth, IN 46563)

Houin introduced himself as the Plymouth City Attorney and said that Mayor Listenberger was not
able to be here tonight due to other obligations, so he had asked him to speak on behalf of the
administration. He stated as far as the variance request, the administration supported this and feel
it was a good use for the area. He commented they certainly want to see Dr. Plumlee be able to
expand their services. He stated he could say personally that Plumlee was his dentist and that he
does get nervous riding his bike to his office so that was why the multi-use trail had been a topic of
conversation. He stated he appreciated that they included it here and they did that before they could
tell them about some of the design plans that the city was working on. He stated they have Engineers
conducting a study on Oak Drive running all the way from US 30 to the hospital to find ways to
add bicycle and pedestrian infrastructure. He explained they asked for two plans, with one being
how quickly and cost effectively they can get something in place. He stated that design would put
some compromise infrastructure in place to allow bicycle lanes and pedestrians along Oak Drive.
He stated the second version of the plan they asked for, which was the gold version, so if time and
money were not an object, and if they were to start from scratch, how should they have built Oak
Drive. He stated they are hoping they can do some things very quickly and as they identify grant
funding and other opportunities; they can gradually incorporate some of the better plans. He stated
the best plan would include bicycle lanes on the street and a multi-use path along the edge of the
street. He stated the biggest problem on Oak Drive was that in some places, there was less than two
feet of ROW, and that was not enough for a sidewalk, let alone a multi-use path. He explained that
was a topic for the Plan Commission and they expect to come back to the Plan Commission with
another request from Dr. Plumlee. He stated about a year ago, when Collins were building their
new office on Oak Drive, they arranged with them, that rather than installing the sidewalk as part
of the development, as it was normally required, they dedicated a 10-foot easement to the city so
combined they have about 12 feet of space to work with when they get to the point of installing a
plan. He stated they would be proposing that they make the same arrangement with Plumlee
Dentistry, so rather than installing a sidewalk or any sort of path on Oak Drive as part of this
development that they dedicate a 10-foot easement so they can incorporate it into the plans the city
was working on versus putting in a sidewalk that would need to be torn out and redone later.



PLYMOUTH BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
September 3, 2024

Board members Gidley and Richie moved and seconded to close the public hearing. The motion
carried.

Richie stated his office was right down the road in that plaza and it was a nice place to have an
office between Jimmy Johns and Wings Etc. so it was nice to have a dentist nearby to get a filling
at. He stated if they could get a cardiologist down there, then he would never have to leave a half-
mile radius. He stated Plumlee Dentistry had wonderful service there and right where they are at
was such a great spot for them and easy to get to for those who work on that side of the city. He
stated he could not speak highly enough about them.

Board members Wendel and Richie moved and seconded to approve BZA 2024-16-17 as presented.
The motion passed by roll call vote.

Yes: Gidley, Richie, Secor, Wendel, and Jacobs
No: None
Absent: Selge

BZA 2024-18: Cameron and Brittany Connolly, 10567 Olive TRL, Plymouth, IN 46563: A
Variance of Use to raise five (5) hens for egg production on parcel 50-32-07-000-148.000-018,
located at 10567 Olive TRL, Plymouth, IN 46563, zoned R-2, Suburban Residential District.

Plan Consultant Booker reviewed the findings of fact and the request from the applicant. He read
the applicant’s letter aloud (see attached letter below).

City of Plymouth Board of Zoning Appeals — Application for Variance of Use
Letter of Intent

Petitioner: Cameron & Brittany Connolly
Mailing Address: 10567 Olive Trail & Use Variance Address

Plymouth, Indiana 46563

Phone: 574-933-1200
Email: Connolcj@gmail.com

The intent of this application from my wife and 1 is to request a Use Variance to allow for
raising/keeping five (5) hens (no roosters) on our approximately 1.29-acre property. The
property is currently zoned R-2 (Suburban Residential District) and we recently found out that
raising chickens is not permitted use within the zoning district.

The size of our lot, when coupled with the distances to the surrounding residences, will
not pose risks or injury to public health, safety, morals and gencral welfarc of the

community. Distances to the five (5) closest residences ranges from approximately 380-
feet to 940-feet.

Likewise, as indicated in an acrial submitted as a part of this application, the distances
surrounding residential uses demonstrate that would be no depreciative effect on them.
There would be no adverse impact on from five (5) hens if the more intense current
permitted agricultural uses surrounding them have not negatively impacted them.

The peculiarity in our case stems from being unable to raise five (5) hens on our property
while being located within an area containing intense agricultural uses involving crop
production with the inherent noise and dust associated with it. Additionally, the area and
scattered residences are rural in nature and likely to remain so for the foreseeable future
due to the high percentage of floodplain, state owned property and wetlands surrounding
it.



PLYMOUTH BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
September 3, 2024

As parents we are actively involved in the education of our children beyond the
classroom. It was our intent to use the hens as a teaching tool. Being able to show where
food comes from, the responsibilities associated with raising animals and the connections
between farm and table. Being unable to raise the hens would not allow us to do this and
poses a hardship in educating them.

Our property is currently zoned R-2 Suburban Residential and does not allow chickens.
However, the future land use recc lation contained in the City of Plymouth’s
Comprehensive Plan for our property is R-1 Rural Residential which does allow
chickens. The granting of the requested Use Variance will bring our property into
agreement with the Comprehensive Plan.

- 4

: || PR
10567 Olive Trail Plymouth, IN 46563 m Distance to 5 clospsy l{%f it é
L ‘
) el |

s &y
Site Plan ; /’, X y.

AN
A

5 { L\ TR | | .
\ | F
,.,ﬂ."-‘ sazooozooom IIF

QQ@
Qo\“
7'
. \>°°°’0
i«
lb)'
Ivs‘

Booker explained during his visit the neighbor to the south came out and visited him while he was
on the property and at that time she had no concerns aside from who the guy was that was checking
out the property.

Cameron Connolly (10567 Olive TRL., Plymouth, IN 46563)
Connolly stated they mainly wanted to have chickens this year for their children so they can learn

about raising chickens. He stated he tried to have it as nice as possible and found out they could not
have it without approval.



PLYMOUTH BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
September 3, 2024

Jacobs asked if they only planned on having five at a given time.

Connolly replied they started with eight and lost three. He stated they are not trying to have a ton.
Wendel asked how large the coop was.

Connolly replied the outside area was 15 x 15 and inside the shed was 10 x 12.

Wendel asked if he let them roam. Connolly disagreed.

Board members Wendel and Gidley moved and seconded to open the public hearing. The motion
carried.

Michael & Bobi Baker (14745 Dixon Lake Trl., Plymouth, IN 46563)

Mike & Bobi Boker
14745 Divon Lake Tr

Plymouth, IN 46563

RE: BZA 2024-18 - Cameron and Brittany Connolly
To Board of Zoning Appeals,

We are writing this letter in support of Cameron and Brittany Connolly, who are exercising their
fundamentalright to keep chickens an their property. In an age when individual liberty is
increasingly under assault, itis more important than ever to defend our right to make personal
cholcos about how we live and what we do with our own land.

Keeping chickens is not a matter for bureaucratic interference. Chickens provide a source of fresh,
healthy food, teach responsibility, and promotae self-reliance, qualities that should bo encouraged
in any community, Yet, we see increasing government overreach in the form of zoning laws,
regulations, and restrictions that do little but sti‘le our freedom to make decisions about our own
property.

This kind of government intervention is unnecessary and detrimental to the fabric of our society.
Why should the state dictate what we do in our own backyards? The government, with its endless
regulations, often acts as if it knows better than the very people itis supposed to serve, But the
reality is that no government official knows what is best for the Connolly’s and their family better
than they do themselves,

The right to own property and Lo use that properdy to sustain oneself and one's tamily is a core
aspect of personal liherty. By restricting this right, the governmant is overstepping its bounds.

Chickens are not just livestock; they are o symbal of self-sufliciency, a connection to our 1oots, and
a step toward independence from the increasingly centralized systems that dominate our lives, We
must push back ngainst the growing tide of rogulations that seck to control avery aspect of our
existence. The right to keep chickens on one's property is, atits core, about much more than
poultry—it's about freedom,

Wa uige you to consider this issue through the lans of personal liberty. Let the Connolly's keop
chickens withoutinterference, and let us all temember that a government that over-regulates its
citizans is ona that chips away at tho very freedoms itis supposed to protect.

Sincerely,
Mike & Bobi Baker

N A
A 74



PLYMOUTH BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
September 3, 2024

Christine Cain (14729 Dixon Lake Trl., Plymouth, IN 46563)

b ’L L
Pond of Tening Appeals, L1204

on oo\ of  case B52A200HY Caveon

oV P L\\’}t} Connollyy 10%7 OWNe T TPlymeovh

W a3 {7 oen in” Yavor o <hen haviny
OnQRS ad as ywany Sarm: anmmls as’ Wy
Lo, TE ongone 1S aguinnl s bre

“Aeovd e, rerainded \va e s a farm
e past ol ORNE Trel and. Glenn DVermvg e D
0N YD 1eHdey e S Yo o0y, I8¢ onyore,
15 oA ARG dhey Seo\d alse e eyl
Wk o one pont an himt Wl @ikgy/feoonty b
o) Sor Yaling care of Divon Lal

WA s ot e rapiening e manty kars

O w: S with hat Yeing Saicl dvis lecton

oA O DL onedd YL unwy (- 1 bedawee,
ey Spold nek Y o et a |

Lor “OnOKS I an avea ke iy doesn |
care avobl o Y9N wH-h.So Aaprove Fheir
request PO, Chickens help with] Mmosquiees .

i
Tm3me Camn

Board members Gidley and Wendel moved and seconded to close the public hearing. The motion
carried.

Gidley stated this was where each one of these cases stood alone. He asked if there was a proposal
to change this piece of property.

Houin replied that it was not a proposal at that time. He stated in the Comprehensive Plan discussion
about land use, the discussions spoke about getting away from the strict use-based zoning to more
of a form-based zoning, which would allow for more flexibility in that area.

Jacobs asked the applicant how many acres he had.

Connolly replied between the two parcels, it would be around two acres.

Gidley stated based upon the distance between them and other properties, characteristics of this
two-acre property, the size and the self-limit on the number of chickens, and their coop and pen

meet a set of standards that he approved of this request.

Board members Gidley and Richie moved and seconded to approve BZA 2024-18 as presented.
The motion passed by roll call vote.

Yes: Gidley, Richie, Secor, Wendel, and Jacobs
No: None
Absent: Selge



PLYMOUTH BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
September 3, 2024

BZA 2024-19: Steven Craft, 11165 Forest Drive, Plymouth, IN 46563: A Variance of Use to
have chickens on parcel 50-32-95-000-128.000-018, located at 11165 Forest Drive, Plymouth,
IN 46563, zoned R-2, Suburban Residential District.

Plan Consultant Booker reviewed the findings of fact and the request from the applicant. He read
the applicant’s letter aloud (see attached letter below).

To whom it may concern,

We are asking for permission to keep chickens on our
property. We purchased chickens and a coop for them
several years ago because we thought it was allowed outside
city limits. Our house is located at 11165 Forest Drive.

During an inspection for a pool we had installed, we were
informed we were not allowed to have chickens on our
property. We did install a privacy fence and have an
additional enclosure within that fence where we keep the
chickens.

We have attempted to rehome them without success. They
do provide a lot of value to us and our children, since it gives
us the chance to show our girls how to care for the animals.
This also gives us hormone free eggs for them as well.

Since this is all contained within a privacy fence away from
the property lines and the road, and because it has no
negative impact on the neighborhood, we'd like you to grant
us a variance to continue keeping the chickens on our
property.

Sincerely,

Steven Craft & Brianna Bennett

Prapeshg bl
feav Luee
\‘
"l lebitess
oo/ o |
N
A
N e
— \ | € \ L
e T—— ik fenc b
Y L F
& =, i H
== pionay Shuchueg >
] £
i
>
A

\))TAON\J/

Dewivay




PLYMOUTH BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
September 3, 2024

Booker explained when the aerial photography was taken, he could not see a privacy fence, but
when he visited the site in person, there was a privacy fence.

Steven Craft (11165 Forest Dr., Plymouth, IN 46563)

Craft stated his spouse got the chickens and they have a five-year old and two-year old. He stated
they have raised beds in the backyard so they have a system where the chickens provide ferilizer
and fresh eggs. He stated the number of chickens was four an he apologized for not including that
in the petition. He stated they do not expect to get anymore so they could expect four to be the limit.
He stated he could probably have a little more education as the coop was a little small and other
things he was picking up from all the chicken discussions tonight. He stated something they had
wanted to do was make the coop a little bigger and have a perimeter around the coop where they
had walking space. He explained he wanted to be transparent that he was new to owning chickens,
as his wife brought home chickens and they originally thought they were allowed. He stated they
are outside of city limits and as you drive to their house, you see cows and other animals, so it didn’t
occur to them that being outside of city limits that it did not qualify them. He stated some of the
neighbors may had been upset as the chickens left their yard to roam and it took them quite a while
to finish the privacy fence as there was an incident where the chickens got out. He stated it probably
was not one instance but that had occurred prior to the privacy fence. He believed that it should not
be a major issue now going forward especially since he considered to improve the structure they
are living in. He explained that it had occurred to him that it may be small, but they are happy and
fine since they let them out within the privacy fence and are out there with them. He stated he still
wanted to make the structure larger regardless of if it was in any motion or not. He stated the
immediate neighbors he had spoken to personally are all supportive and have no issues. He added
he was aware of people complaining but nobody had come to him and he did not believe it was any
of his immediate neighbors, but rather people in the neighborhood that had strong opinions about
this sort of thing, but they may not be strong against chickens. He stated they are entitled to their
opinions and he supported that. He stated the instances where the chickens ended up outside of his
yard did happen but it was before the fencing. He stated he wanted to commit to a larger structure
for their chickens so when they let them out to roam, that maybe they can be contained within a 10
x 16 area but he may have to do more research to see what was appropriate for four chickens.

Wendel asked if he worried about hawks or owls getting to his chickens.
Craft replied that he did worry as he originally had five chickens.

Wendel stated that he had friends in Culver who had chickens and they daily have problems with
hawks and they have a net over their space.

Craft stated they had a big hawk in the neighborhood and originally they had three chickens and his
wife came home with two more but they lost one of the two to a hawk. He stated they did not have
any roosters and they did not intend on having any roosters.

Board members Wendel and Richie moved and seconded to open the public hearing. The motion
carried.

Linda Lipply (11160 Manor Dr., Plymouth, IN 46563)



PLYMOUTH BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
September 3, 2024

Lipply stated that her backyard abuts Craft’s property. She stated she had no problem with chickens
but like Craft proposed she would like to see a larger coop for them. She stated that as long as there
are no roosters and the number was limited, she had no problem with the request.

Ray & Kathy Girres (11158 Forest Dr., Plymouth, IN 46563)

August 24, 2024

To: The Board of Zoning Appeals
From: Ray & Kathy Girres
RE: BZA 2024-19: Steven Craft

We live near the Craft family and have no objection to them having chickens on
their property. The have a fully fenced back yard and the front is maintained
nicely. This family is an asset to the neighborhood.

Raymond ). Girres (;Q,me,_,c(. 2— ,é/,,ma)

Kathryn A. Girres Ljaél' u[b./«f,&m.&v

11158 Forest Dr., Plymouth, IN 46563

Jim & Mary Stuckmeyer (11159 Forest Dr., Plymouth, IN 46563)

August 28, 2024

RE: BZA 2024-19 Steven Craft 11165 Forest Dr Plymouth IN 46563

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN

We live next door to the Crafts and want to let you know that we have no objection
to them being granted a variance to have chickens. The chickens have been no
problem to us and they do a good job of keeping them contained in their yard.

They have two small children who love these chickens and T hope that this family
will continue to be allowed to have them.

Thank you,

Y\/\A«LZ gwakww&u(

Mary Stuckmeyer

o %
{ift\” Sfutkmeyer

11159 Forest Dr.
Plymouth, IN 46563



PLYMOUTH BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
September 3, 2024

Angie Birchmeier (11100 Shadylane Dr., Plymouth, IN 46563)

Mrs. Birchmeier stated that she did have a letter that Booker would be reading but she wanted to
add to this as she had been listening to the rest of the chicken requests. She explained that she had
not met Craft, and she did not live right next to him, but she was within the same subdivision. She
stated that she does have some concerns about allowing this within the subdivision as they had an
issue where farm animals were housed on property close to her property. She stated that it was
denied at the time, and she had concern about animals coming in like coyotes and foxes coming
into the neighborhood as there are a lot of children in the neighborhood. She stated she was also
concerned about the waste and where all that would go as they wanted to ensure everything was
clean. She stated she would respectfully request that this be denied.

Craft replied with the fenced in yard that he did not believe wildlife would be an issue or if that
would bring coyotes in. He stated that for the waste, they have six raised beds, so the waste was
good for the ecosystem, and they eat some of the vegetables that does not get consumed by them
and in turn fertilize it. He stated this was more for their kids as they have one on the way and two
other kids.

Wendel asked if he had an older son.

Craft replied that he had a 20-year-old son, Tyler, and he was one of the primary workers in the
yard.

Kenneth & Tammy Hall (11115 Timber Ln., Plymouth, IN 46563)

August 26, 2024 Top photo was in Nancy Ames yard. Bottom photo was in our yard.

Plymouth City Hall
124 N. Michigan St.
Plymouth, IN 46563

Re: BZA 2024-19 Steven Craft, 11165 Forest Drive, Plymouth, IN 46563
Dear BZA,

I am writing you in regards to the variance of use to chickens. 1 am very much against this. The
chickens have been roaming in our yard as well as our nelghbor’s yard. (See Photos Attached).
They are not responsible with their animals.

My understanding from the August 1, 2023 amendment that this would be limited to R-1 zoning
areas. | feel that if people want to raise chickens, goats, horses, etc., then they should have
bought a hobby farm. Not a home in a subdivision. If I were looking to buy a home and seen a
chicken coop adjacent to the property, | would not buy it. My husband and | have worked hard
to keep our home looking nice just as others have in our neighborhood and we don’t want our
property values to drop.

If you approve the variance, it will open Pandora’s Box.

Kindest Regards,

Tt Y, Z i,

Tammy Hal/ 4 Kcnnclh’HaH ‘ N
11115 Timber Lane 11115 Timber Lane
Plymouth, IN 46563 Plymouth, IN 46563




PLYMOUTH BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
September 3, 2024

Lynda Soderlund (11095 Timber Ln., Plymouth, IN 46563)

August 25, 2024

Plymouth City Hall

Board of Zoning Appeals Office
124 N. Michigan St.

Plymouth, IN 46563

To Whom It May Concern,

Re: BZA 2024-19
Steven Cralt 11165 Fores! Drive, Plymouth IN “Chickens”

I am writing in response to the notice received dated 8-22-24.
I am against the proposed variance or rozoning of our residential neighborhood.

There should boe NO leniency on this issue. Farm animals belong in the country where the
zoning allows for them. Thats why there are zoning laws.

Chickens bring disease and rodents,

| am personally aware of an increase of rodents in our neighborhood over the last few years.
Of the neighbors that | surveyed on this subject, every one of them have seen a significant up-
tick in rodent activity this summer. Typlcally, if there is to be increased rodent activity, it would
be more noticeable in the fall after the crops come down. In our yard alone, we load our bait
stations (x2) in the spring and in the fall. This year, we have loaded both of them 4 times since
the end of June and we have had aclivily in our home. This is not ok!!

I have pictures proving that these chickens have been allowed to roam. This doesn't prove
responsible ownership. As a neighbor, | don't appreciate or approve of the variance requested.

Just a few years ago we had to ask a family leave our subdivision dua to their family business
of raising and selling pigmy goals. What could be next? A petting zoo perhaps?
If we allow the variance or rezoning here we are opening a can of worms.

Pleaso, NOT HERE!

Respecliully,

‘%/’)'\ {x . Jmmam(

Lynda Soderlund
11095 Timber Ln.
Plymouth, IN 46563

Jeff & Angie Birchmeier (11100 Shadylane Dr., Plymouth, IN 46563)

August 28, 2024

City of Plymouth

Board of Zoning Appeals
124 N Michigan St
Plymouth, IN 46563

To Whom It May Concern:

On Tuesday, September 3, 2024 the Board of Zoning Appeals will hear case 2024-19 for Steven
Craft, 11165 Forest Drive, Plymouth, IN. Mr, Cralt is requesting a variance of use to allow
chickens to be housed on his property. As a property owner in the Forest Hills Subdivision, we
respectfully request the BZA deny this request.

We have lived in this neighborhood for many years and it is not a neighborhood that is
conducive to this type of animal. In the request for the variance, Mr. Craft stated that "the
chickens are enclosed within our completed property fence. There is no impact on our
neighbors,” Unfortunately, that is not true. Unlil the violation was brought to their attention,
neighbors have had these chickens in their yard and have seen them roaming the neighborhood
in addition to at least one duck that is present on the property.

While we can appreciate the petitioner's request and desire to give their children the opportunity
to learn about cating for animals, there is concern that if allowed this will open up for more fow!
and/or farm animals in the future. If permitted, how many fowl would be the limit? Who would
police this situation to ensure that no more than the allowable amount are being housed on the
property?

In November of 2020, there was a case before the BZA requesting to house farm animals at
another location in the Forest Hills Subdivision which was denied. Having set precedent, we
would appreciate the Board upholding the peace and tranquility of our neighborhood.

Thank you for your consideration in this matter,

Jeff and Angie Birchmeier
11100 Shadylane Dr
Plymouth, IN 46563



PLYMOUTH BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
September 3, 2024

Y
Py hsvil Cosn il

I2Y A AP Sk arn

/}/,Vm.;uv/_,l/n- AN ET
o cedom te Aty Cene mun

P w Dy p A Coptonss 0f g 7S Byue
CAN Rine On pppcsi/ S0 -22-21- Co0—/25,000 =9/
1006y Fopwss PRr1vE ook Zn
YUyt Zomrd P Sobondon it s Dt icrcs

AKocolad A7

//7y ,’x-;’ﬂ’nly P

CAr g

PETITION AGAINST VARIANCE OF USE TO HAVE CHICXENS
LOCATED ON PARCEL 50-32-95-000-128.000-018
11165 FOREST DRIVE, PLYMOUTH, IN 46563
Owmer Steven Craft

lyervwh Boaad oF Feasnic 4///7/.--1//
('/,4,. Bbé ot

1028 Alamon DA Wi 7¢ 72
TAE Vi O F A An oo PANFFALy A oosd L
lo (o Koo gad Aari Pon on U
SR pEALY, Flan terr K P frrmaed oo g ace FKE
Chictns pHif) €A 0e o5 PAaon nihs

David Scheetz (11118 Manor Dr., Plymouth, IN 46563)

s pucetinty
A 7(,‘ \/téu‘/s,r
SR pHpaon DR
//,/»..- ve L Z s
Yz

Booker also explained there was a petition filled out.

PETITION AGAINST VARIANCE OF USE TO HAVE CHICKENS.
LOCATED ON PARCEL 50-32-95-000-128.000-018
11165 FOREST DRIVE, PLYMOUTH, IN 46563
Owner Steven Craft

printhame: __I>ebbie Misson

adess 106 Timber I
' ”' v
Sigmature: Delle /}/ﬁu\d

pinttisme;_Orey Ml
Mdress: __J02 Tinby Ly

Sigmture:

<

Print Names: é{/)uw kfl_d//}#
Address: D17 J/}_)]/ll/\;.;{iﬂ
Signature: \f/)Q(L«L;L'/:lJ/Q-L

PETITION AGAINST VARIANCE OF USE TO HAVE CHICKENS
LOCATED ON PARCEL 50-32-95-000-128.000-018
11165 TOREST DRIVE, PLYMOUTH, IN 46563
Owner Steven Craft

punttiame: Tty A, Sone
Marmor. . Dave
Signature: Clu»l{ gfp:r/

v7

Address: _| | 074

printtame: _AModinds_Stmo
11074 Mano: s
signature: YL } .

Address:

75
Print Hame: »/QAJ (f’/_\/}/a},?’#(pmﬂy # S
Ndress: /0118 P a0 b DA

st X)ﬂ/&{(

Print Name: KMM};\‘A]LM&@«*

Address: \\OUL 054 DI 09,

Sgmture: .& Q@

]
Prit Name: \ﬁ'\ﬂ\‘g)\il\f
nasess: 1017 fonst Dewe Dot TN
Q. C
Sgmature: Vi ll‘\L\Q L‘\7

Print Name: c‘rﬂl f(n’: Q}\&Ch

Address: 11039 faces! Dr
sgroture: ([}
o
PETITION AGAINST VARIANCE OF USE TO HAVE CHICKENS
LOCATED ON PARCEL 50-32-95-000-128.000-018
11165 FOREST DRIVE, PLYMOUTH, IN 46563
Ovener Steven Cralt
Print Name: (/\ﬁ ﬂ’ H ILIMI:(/«/

w110 Y Tyonbor (e Pgroh Lo Yoy 3
wll Al ——

Signature:

Print Hame:

Address:

Signature:




PLYMOUTH BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
September 3, 2024

Craft stated he was at a disadvantage as far as petitions go as he questions a lot about legitimacy as
a lot of the petition seems like conjecture and he does not know those names, nor could he verify
it. He stated someone could have had a party with six of their friends and filled out a petition.

Jacobs asked if they verified the addresses and the names. He stated he knew the people but saw
what he was saying on not knowing if they live there.

Craft stated they should have an obligation to show up here or write a letter.
Jacobs stated they do not require that people must show up.

Houin replied a petition was not a standard procedure for BZA requests.
Jacobs asked regarding letters if they ever verify for or against.

Craft stated that you could not see anything from outside the privacy fence so any concerns about
property value that there was no noise, odor, or visual indication that there was chickens. He stated
he was not aware of any chickens getting out since the privacy fence was completed but it did take
him a while to finish it as he did it himself. He stated that he had regretted that as it took forever for
one person to complete. He restated that he would commit to building a more appropriate structure.

Wendel asked how tall the fence was.

Craft replied it was a standard 6-foot privacy fence.

Wendel asked if chickens could fly that high because that was how they could have got out.
Mrs. Hall stated if there are items stacked up then that she could imagine them hoping out.

Craft replied that someone could have left the gate open. He stated the most likely thing was that
he had kids, and someone left the gate open. He stated that he had dogs and that can often be a
problem. He stated they have a Yorkie that was small. He stated the visuals and property value
portions of the argument are not legitimate, but he could not speak to rodents increasing as he was
not aware of that. He stated he questioned those names, and he knows most of his neighbors as it
was not a densely populated area. He stated it could be legitimate people whom he happened to
never meet or hear of but he runs the neighborhood Facebook page so he sees a lot of socializing
with people he does not directly know he would sometimes see online. He stated it could be
possible, but it was a red flag to him.

Gidley stated some of the addresses were in Manor Drive and that was a subdivision that abuts him.

Craft believed that some people are just against the idea of people owning chickens and are not
actually affected by him. He stated he could be wrong.



PLYMOUTH BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
September 3, 2024

Gidley stated they had to notify any property owner within 300 feet or two properties. He asked
Booker if he had a list of names of people who received the letters that are the same as those who
signed the petition.

Booker replied away from the microphone but listed names in the petition. Names of letters are
listed below.

Owner =
£ RACZKOWSKI JOHN A SC(LAURA A I<ey:
L WEHR FRANK C & KIMBERLY H/ W

L CANTERO JOSE J 1/2 INT & SANDRAA ROMO INIGUEZ 172 INT

v £ STONE JERRY L& MELINDA S

Fetlers Reaeived

£ BACA JUAN C MENDEZ & GICELA BACA ARRIAGA HW

£ SCHEETZ DAVID A & GUINEVERE J

v Vv

KL SCHEETZ DAVID A & GUINEVERE J

£ DOWNS CRYSTAL & ERIC DOWNS W/H

£ JIYAMAPA SUNEE TRUSTEE REVOC LIVING TRUST

L WEHR FRANK C & KIMBERLY H /W There were two names in the

S LIPPLY LINDA A petition confirmed in the

X STONE JERRY L & MELINDAS Subdivision but dld not

£ KLINGERMAN CLINTON E receive letters regarding the
v £ SCHEETZ GEOFFREY case.

£ BANTA RALPH P & ADAIR J HAW

£ FOUGHT RYAN S & EMILY R HAW
£ CRAFTSTEVEN D
v/ AP STUCKMEYER JAMESR& MARY L
£ MCKENZIE DAVID M & SARAH E
L JIYAMAPA SUNEE TRUSTEE REVOC LIVING TRUST
L AKERS THARRIN & KATELYN HAW
V' © GIRRES RAYMOND J & KATHRYN A HAW
L AMES KEVIN L & NANCY L HW
£ DAVENPORT JON L& NANCY C
v L WITHEY BENJAMIN & KATHERINE HAW
AL EBY RICHARD W & SAMANTHA HAWW
L MILLER GREGORY M & GABRIELLE L HAW

L5

£ MASSON GRANT EDWARD & DESORAH
/O SODERLUNDPETER H & LYNDA M HAW
vV P HALLKENNETH & TAMMY

Deputy Clerk-Treasurer Williams added that he did try to require signatures on letters that got sent
into the clerk’s office, so they can confirm it was who sent the letter in versus someone typing up a
story. He explained that most of the letters received in this case were dropped off in person, they
called ahead of time, or they called asking if their letter was received in the mail.

Nancy Ames (11122 Forest Dr., Plymouth, IN 46563)

Ames stated she lived across the street from the Craft family and agreed that the chickens roamed
the neighborhood, but she had not seen them outside since the fence went up. She stated they would
come over to her yard and eat the bird feed off the ground and they did not bother her any. She
stated she was not against them having chickens as they have them inside the fence now. She
explained that she had been listening for the last two hours so she could tell them because she did
not get her letter sent out.



PLYMOUTH BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
September 3, 2024

Board members Gidley and Wendel moved and seconded to close the public hearing. The motion
carried.

Richie stated if edible fowl entered onto his property that he would be excited as that would cut
down 50% ofhis calls to Door Dash, but he understood that people did not want chickens wandering
onto their property. He stated he would be curious to find out if there was anything that Craft could
do that would appease those around him who had complaints about this request aside from a full
removal of the chickens.

Jacobs stated that would be difficult for them now as they must make a motion one way or the other
or let it die in lack of a motion.

Wendel proposed the same standard set with the earlier subdivision that they give them one year
and then they would decide as he would ensure something gets in writing. He stated they may come
back with no subdivisions, but he believed it would be fair to give it time to see how it would play
out.

Board member Wendel moved to approve BZA 2024-19 with the stipulation of no roosters, a year
timeframe for review, and allowance of 4 chickens as presented. The motion died due to lack of a
second.

Secor stated she was unsure due to the comments made by those against the request.

Jacobs asked Houin what would happen if they did not maké a motion and did not act.

Houin replied that if there was no action taken, then there would be no variance granted so it was
like a denial. He stated if it were to die due to inaction, that they would not be required to wait a

year to make a request again, like in the case of a denial.

Richie stated that was the drawback of this, but he understood why they do this case by case as
there are positives to it. He stated it would be good to have a blanket R-2 standard.

Mrs. Hall stated the keyword was subdivision as the prior case with Connolly was more of a hobby
farm to her. She believed there should be more restrictions for subdivisions.

Gidley stated it was said already that there would be no chickens in subdivisions.
Jacobs stated they just granted one now and they had before.

Gidley stated the prior case with Nutmeg Meadows came before the R-1 “Agricultural Limited.”
There was a long discussion on when the case was, but it was settled that Nutmeg Meadows
occurred before the King Road case for chickens. Outside of the meeting, the variance for chickens
out on Nutmeg Meadows occurred on July 6, 2021, while the discussion about chickens started on
King Road occurred on July 7, 2023.

Mr. Birchmeier stated they had an issue in the subdivision a couple years ago and asked what the
difference was between a hedgehog issue versus what they are talking about that night.



PLYMOUTH BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
September 3, 2024

Jacobs replied the difference was hedgehogs and chickens.
Gidley asked if it was goats and sheep.
Mr. Birchmeier replied that it was hedgehogs and goats.

Jacobs stated with variances that they could say no to everyone, and he does not believe that any
American would want that. He stated if he lived beside this case that it probably wouldn’t bother
him, but he could see why it would bother some of the neighbors and that was okay. He stated it
was not about what he felt but what everyone else felt about the case. He stated to make that
distinction was why that board was not easy. He stated there are not a lot of parameters, but they
work together to communicate. He explained that was why on the other family when they reviewed
the case, do they communicate, have them remove the operation, or do they try to figure something
out. He stated with the one-year timeframe, they may have to go back and have them remove it but
that was their decision.

Gidley stated he believed that generationally more people are attuned to having chickens. He stated
he can’t speak for his generation, but a lot of people bought homes in subdivisions because there
were restrictions and rules.

Jacobs explained as a Firefighter, he could tell them that in fighting fires in Plymouth, they have
encountered pigs in people’s basements.

Richie stated the thing was they have their own opinions, but this was not about them as they are
representing the people around them. He asked what the opinion of most of the people around them
was.

Gidley stated if all they did was to have a show of hands then there would be no reason to have a
board as this was not about a show of hands but rather about a community that had set a standard.
He stated it was a shame that they do not have as many standards for this style of case. He stated
the community at large had told them about their opinions on animals.

Jacobs stated what was difficult to him was that it was a family trying to try something, but it was
difficult living beside that as well.

Richie stated in an ideal situation they should have the right to have chickens and have his children
see that, but it needed to be in the right place.

Jacobs stated what was interesting to him was that even with 30 acres he could not have chickens
without asking.

Board member Gidley moved to deny BZA 2024-19 as presented. The motion died due to a lack of
a second.

There was a significant amount of discussion without another motion made.



PLYMOUTH BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
September 3, 2024

Jacobs believed it was good to have a public forum about this in our community and allowed another
speaker to come forward.

Jeff Youst (11440 Forest Dr., Plymouth, IN 46563)

Youst stated he had one word and that word was precedent. He explained he was not for or against
what was going on there. He stated he lived on Forest Drive, so he lives three streets over from him,
even though it was in the same subdivision. He stated when he first built his home in 2000, he got
a lot of free Domino’s pizzas because they could be staring at his home and have no idea where it
was. He stated for the precedent, if this was allowed, and someone comes in next year wanting a
pony and you deny it, what would stop them from suing the board.

Jacobs replied that they have the right to take it to circuit court. He stated despite the decision, the
applicant had the right to try to appeal that.

Booker commented that they have thirty days from the date of the decision to take it to circuit court.
Jacobs explained that whatever the court says goes.

Richie stated the problem was there was not a set precedent definitively as they had approved and
denied.

Jacobs explained it came down to the size, lot, quality, but rarely had a decision been made due to
strong opinions.

Youst stated he had come to this meeting not knowing his plans and he saw a small coop, but the
more he sat and listened, he stated there had been changes over the last 24 years since 2000. He
explained he had witnessed some of the nicer homes depreciate because people are not caring like
they used to. He stated there was one home that was a single-family dwelling, and he stated there
are multiple families there now. He stated people park campers, parking trailers in their driveways
all the time, and they show up in the spring and do not leave until the Fall while others stay there
all year round. He stated if chickens show up, then more people would believe they can get away
with more and that was why there are a lot of things that fall under the word precedent.

Jacobs stated that would mean they had to accept it as they had already set precedent by accepting
the earlier case. He stated Youst was right on a lot but for the one on Nutmeg Meadows, even
though it was in a subdivision, people showed up entirely in support for them having chickens. He
stated they had originally not got a variance for it so he had assumed the neighbors would have
been upset but they were all in favor of it.

Richie asked if the rule was to not have chickens in R-2.

Booker replied in agreement that there was no livestock allowed in R-2. He stated the only livestock
that was allowed before the recent amendment in R-1, was horses in R-1.

Richie stated for as much as he would love for Craft to have those chickens, that it seemed they are
bound by the rule that was set that there was no livestock in R-2.



PLYMOUTH BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
September 3, 2024

Jacobs stated for everything they vote on, there was a rule against it, as a BZA. He stated if there
was no BZA, they would be subject to the rules.

Booker stated the BZA was there because there was a blanket ordinance but many rules due to fit
everybody, because instead of a square lot, you may have a triangular lot, etc. He stated the one
case before this the applicant had almost two acres, but it was zoned R-2.

Gidley stated there was always certain parcels on a zoning map that end up in a certain zoning
district, but then you discover it should have been in the neighboring zoning district, and that was
what he believed with Olive Trail. He did not believe it should have been R-2, but rather an R-1.
Richie asked Gidley why he made a motion to deny earlier.

Gidley replied that he wanted to be consistent in subdivisions and that was why he did not vote in
favor of the first subdivision that evening as he was against chickens in subdivisions. He explained
that was the standard they set 6-8 months ago.

Jacobs stated the case dies due to lack of a motion as they could not come to a consensus.

Board members Jacobs and Gidley moved and seconded to give the applicant one week to remove
the chickens. The motion passed by roll call vote.

Yes: Gidley, Richie, Secor, Wendel, and Jacobs
No: None
Absent: Selge

Gidley stated the request did not get denied but rather died, so if the rules change, he may not have
to come back dependent on the decision.

Craft asked for clarification on the rule for applying for another variance.

Jacobs replied that since they did not vote on this, he had the ability to come back and ask for a
variance again, but he would get the same answer if they do not make standards around chickens in
subdivisions.

Craft asked if he had to wait a year.

Jacobs replied that he did not.

Gidley explained if they were to come up with rules before a year that he could come back.

Jacobs stated if they decide next month that he could have two chickens in a subdivision, that he
could come back as every case stands alone.

Wendel asked if the chickens were big enough to take care of.



PLYMOUTH BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS
September 3, 2024

Craft replied that he did not know.
Mrs. Hall stated that they were big enough and she could help with that.
Craft replied that he did not need help.

Other Business:

Manuwal stated he had spoken to other zoning administrators throughout the state, and they do not
allow chickens at all to the point where it was practically automatically denied.

Gidley asked if he was not even allowing it to go to a zoning board.

Manuwal replied that he spoke to a zoning administrator in southern Indiana and before he went to
the jurisdiction he was in now, livestock cases were constant. He stated it had ate up a lot of time
but since moving, they were going through their zoning that it was suggested it needed to be a yes
or no.

Jacobs stated it was tough because the first subdivision was for it, and he was aware that shouldn’t
be the reason to vote in favor as the neighbors could change. He stated for his pole barn, he
understood why he had to come before the zoning board, because they did not want people living
in their pole barns in the two-mile zone and he understood that. He explained that was why they
had to look at each case individually.

Manuwal agreed there were things he had to enforce that he didn’t agree with and explained that it
was like building codes. He stated building codes are basically a “D-,” if you build to code, so you
are doing the bare minimum. He stated there are a lot of times where he wanted to go in and deny
something, but he could not be due to it just meeting code.

Wendel asked if the city council would have to approve the chickens.
Houin replied that it would have to be a recommendation from the Plan Commission first. He stated
if they wanted anything to change that the Plan Commission would first have to discuss it. He stated

the Comprehensive Plan Zoning Subcommittee could also discuss it.

There being no other business, Board members Richie and Gidley moved and seconded to adjourn
the meeting. The motion carried, and the meeting adjourned at 10:05 p.m.

7&61' A g

K);le Williams, Recording Secretary




